NASA Shared Services Center (NSSC)

Industry Day Questions & Answers


NOTE TO OFFERORS:  THE RESPONSES INCLUDED IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PREDECISIONAL, AND ARE BASED ON INFORMATION AVAILABLE AS OF JUNE 17, 2004.

NASA IS CURRENTLY INVOLVED IN CONDUCTING MARKET RESEARCH THROUGH COLLECTING INFORMATION/COMMENTS/SUGGESTIONS IN RESPONSE TO THE NSSC DRAFT SOLICITATION, RELEASED FOR COMMENT ON MAY 21, 2004.

NASA MAY REVISE THE SOLICITATION, BASED ON COMMENTS RECEIVED, WHICH MAY SUBSEQUENTLY ALTER THE RESPONSES PROVIDED HEREIN.

THE FINAL SOLICITATION WILL INCLUDE  ALL OF THE REQUIREMENTS FOR THE NSSC A-76 COMPETITION.

	1. 
	NASA has identified more than 1200 (?) government functions or staff members that are currently performing commercial work (determined by NASA as such).  Since NASA has defined and certified these commercial functions being performed by government people, is it planned to transition these commercial functions to the NSSC?  If not, why not?

Response:  The NSSC Implementation Report dated September 2003, noted approximately 1200 FTEs performing work in the four functional areas (human resources, procurement, financial management, and information technology) that were considered for migration to the NSSC.  This number represents the total population of the workforce in these functional areas, not the number of commercial positions.  The work to be performed by the NSSC is essentially transactional in nature.

	2. 
	What is the rationale for potentially having government staff to continue performing commercial work/functions that the government (NASA in this case) has itself defined as commercial?  Is it not Federal Policy that the government not performs work that can be fairly and reasonably obtained in the private sector?

Response:  Federal policy does not dictate the transfer of all commercial work to private industry.  In compliance with OMB Circular A-76, the commercial work that is part of the new NSSC is being competed between industry and incumbent federal source to determine the more cost effective means of obtaining these services. The NSSC will have civil servant employees performing inherently-governmental work (non-commercial), which is not part of this A-76 competition.

	3. 
	At least two sites do not all meet the requirements in the Draft RFP Attachment J-16/J-26.  Will offerors be scored based on how well the sites do (or do not) meet the long-term facility requirements?  If so, how?

Response:  All sites will satisfy the requirements of the Final RFP.  Discrepancies will be resolved during the lease terms and conditions standardization phase, which is currently in-progress.  The technical aspects (Class A, LEED Silver, etc.) of all the facilities/sites will not be evaluated as a part of this A-76 Competition.

	4. 
	How will the Agency ensure site partners keep offerors information confidential?

Response:  NASA is not a party to discussions between Offerors and Partners.

	5. 
	Must all NSSC Service Provider staff be located at the proposed site (1 of the 6 nominated)?  Or can an offeror propose to locate some functions at other locations?  For example, can the offeror propose using an existing contractor call [contact] center if this existing call [contact] center is in a different state than the proposed site?

Response:  All of the requirements of this A-76 RFP shall be performed at the NSSC site (1 of the 6) selected and proposed by the Offeror.

	6. 
	Will the government cost proposal be burdened with 6% fee?

Response: NASA has determined that it is legally permissible for the MEO, should it be selected as the service provider, to receive an award fee.  Therefore, in general, the MEO will be subject to the same fee solicitation provisions and fee contract clauses as any other offeror.

	7. 
	Will a list of participants in NSSC Industry Day (Contact Information) be provided to your website?

Response: Yes.  This list will be provided both at the NSSC website and the fedbizopps site.

	8. 
	Some sites are using incentives to lower the lease rates exorbitantly, so that they are able to offer leases dramatically below market value.  Can you please tell us how NASA will address or adjust for this augmentation of appropriation?

Response: NASA Office of the General Counsel will review all lease terms, conditions, and associated costs prior to the release of the Final RFP and HQ will coordinate with the Center to resolve any augmentation issues.

	9. 
	It would seem that the 10% differential and the procurement strategy of “Trade-off selection” may be counter productive if the best technical solution is selected over the lowest price bid which did beat the 10% level, but the best technical solution did not beat the 10%, giving the award to the MEO.  Please explain how this sort of situation would be resolved.

Response: In accordance with the OMB Circular, NASA intends to perform cost realism analysis and apply the conversion differential.  Any trade-offs made between the technical and cost factors will be made after NASA has performed its cost realism analysis and has applied the conversion factor.  The evaluation of proposals will not include “interim” evaluations of proposals before the conversion factor is applied.

	10. 
	What is the current contractor percentage (%) that cannot be exceeded in the Agency Tender offer (i.e. 10%, 40%, etc.)?

Response: The agency tender cannot exceed the total contractor percentage currently performing the work.  Because this percentage restriction only applies to the MEO, other potential offerors do not need this information to prepare their proposals.

	11. 
	Please identify the contractor companies that have work which will be included in this new award?

Response: Incumbent contractors currently performing the activities being competed were identified in the public announcement, released through the fedbizopps website December 12, 2003.  NASA intends to identify all companies that have expressed an interest in the NSSC procurement and those companies that attended the Industry Day held June 2, 2004.  

	12. 
	Will any IT hardware or software be provided as government furnished equipment for the Customer Service Contact Center?  Will Contact Center Customer Service Representatives be provided with Seat Management (ODIN) desktop services?

Response: In the next couple of weeks NASA will amend the Draft RFP to include the list of government furnished equipment.  General information about the Agency Seat Management Services (ASMS) (currently provided under ODIN) was released with the Draft PWS.  Specifics of a standard ODIN desktop seat will be released with the Final RFP.  Each Offeror will be required to identify the level of ASMS they will require and include the associated costs in their cost proposal—NASA will provide estimated costs for each service per seat.  Contact Center Customer Service Representatives will be provided Seat Management desktop services if that is the approach of the Offeror.

	13. 
	How will the lease deal with long-term (more than 10 years) arrangements?  Is it in a site’s best interest to provide a 10 year deal that is more favorable over 10 years, as compared to a longer term deal that is more favorable in the long run, but less favorable in the short run?

Response: NASA is in the process of finalizing Lease terms, conditions, and associated costs with the Centers/Partners.  The duration of the Lease is tentatively 15 years.

	14. 
	Will the lease terms be included in the final RFP for all the sites?  Will all offerors be provided the same costs and terms for the lease at each site?

Response: The final RFP will provide the annual lease cost and anticipated occupancy date for each site, which will be the same for all offerors. It should be noted that there may be facility costs, incentives, etc. that may fall outside of the lease that could vary based on offeror/partner negotiations.  These types of costs will not be released with the final RFP.

	15. 
	Has the lease period gone from 15 years to 10 years?  If so, why?

Response: The anticipated lease period to be included in the final RFP is 15 years.

	16. 
	Who will manage the computer training laboratory and video teleconference facility provided as part of the government provided property?

Response: Reference NSSC PWS paragraph 3.2.4.4 for computer training room support.  NASA will add operational support of the Video Teleconference room to NSSC PWS paragraph 3.4.

	17. 
	How do you maintain confidentiality of information in this process?

Response:  NASA has secured all Site Nomination proposals as A-76 competition sensitive data.  NASA HQ will only release that information provided by the Centers/Partners to be included in the final RFP.  NASA will release the lease cost and anticipated occupancy date for each site in the final RFP.  The Partners will have sole responsibility for releasing any additional information.

	18. 
	Do offerors bear the costs of the interim facility, or are they reimbursed by NASA under the contract?

Response: Costs associated with NASA’s requirement to provide an interim facility are reimbursable.

	19. 
	Is government furnished property to be provided for the long-term facility also going to be provided for the interim facility?

Response: Yes, additional details will be provided in the final RFP.

	20. 
	Will NASA assure that each facility or site satisfies the requirements in the RFP and related documents?  

Background/issues:  You have said that all 6 sites are acceptable.  The Agency is controlling negotiations and site partners can alter their proposals.  Some sites do not appear to meet all requirements.  Offerors do not want to pick a site that fails to meet requirements.  Draft RFP section L-20 states that the site must meet requirements.

Response: NASA will assure that all sites satisfy requirements associated with the Technical aspects of the facility.

	21. 
	Will the support services provided by NASA fall under existing contracts; i.e. security, janitorial, etc.

Response: Some administrative support services may be addressed in the lease terms and conditions; while others will be sought through other contracting mechanisms or MOUs with the nearest Center.

	22. 
	RESERVED.

	23. 
	In NASA’s initial site reviews did the team examine or perform as local work force analysis to support the center?  If so, will that information be available to potential offerors?

Response: Yes, a cursory local work force analyses were performed in the initial site reviews; however, it is expected that each offeror will perform its own detailed work force analyses.  NASA does not intend to publicly release this previous information.

	24. 
	RESERVED

	25. 
	What is the rationale behind the government not being held to the small business requirement?  Is this fair to the Industry bidders?

Response: The OMB Circular states that the MEO is not required to submit a small business subcontracting plan or goals.

	26. 
	Given that risk is an important factor; will the government consider an alternative to a Cost Plus Award Fee Contract, such as Firm Fixed Price?  Further, will the government consider allowing the contractor to determine the award fee percentage?

Response: NASA chose a cost-type contract for this effort predominantly because of the uncertainties involved with establishing the NSSC as a new organization and the potential uncertainties associated with the lengthy activity transition period (~3 years).  NASA does not intend to consider other than a cost-type arrangement at this point.  NASA is considering establishing a minimum award fee percentage for use by offerors.  Offerors may choose to propose a higher fee than the established minimum percentage at their own discretion.

	27. 
	Please define a “significant subcontractor”?

Response: : “Significant subcontractor” will be identified in the solicitation based on a dollar threshold.  Generally, these are used for the purposes of getting more detailed cost or past performance information from proposed significant or major subcontractors proposed by prime offerors.

	28. 
	Location/technical aspects of site selection will not be evaluated?  What will be evaluated?

Response: The technical aspects (Class A, LEED Silver, etc.) of all the facilities/sites shall not be evaluated as a part of this A-76 Competition.  All facility related costs (associated lease costs and other) willl be evaluated.  

	29. 
	Since the site is to be provided as GFE under the contract, are facility costs evaluated, and if so how?

Response: Reference Q&A #28.  Although the site will be government furnished, the cost for each site varies.  Since offerors may use any of the six sites, there is not a common site cost.  Therefore, facility costs will be evaluated as part of an offeror’s overall proposed cost.

	30. 
	RESERVED.  

	31. 
	The Integrated Transition Schedule (Draft RFP Attachment J-17) is dependent upon the IFMP schedule.  If certain processes like HR are not re-implemented and redesigned under IFMP until later in the performance period, what is the contractual responsibility of the winning Service Provider during transition?  In other words, will the SP be contractually responsible for processes that have not been re-engineered?

Response:  The Service Provider will be responsible for satisfying the requirements of the final RFP.  In general, if NASA needs to substantially revise the activity transition schedule because of impacts to the IFMP schedule, then the parties would need to negotiate an equitable adjustment for the change. .

	32. 
	Will the contractor who performs work for the NSSC be precluded from bidding on other NASA contracts due to conflict of interest?

Response: It is not NASA’s intent to preclude a Contractor, if selected under the NSSC procurement, from competing on other future NASA competitions.  However, NASA must maintain the integrity of these future competitions.  The NSSC contractor will have access to other support contractors’ business information in the course of performing the NSSC contract requirements.  If a Contractor is selected as the successful offeror for this procurement, and that Contractor desires to participate in other future NASA procurements, the selected Contractor will be required to submit a Conflict of Interest Avoidance Plan for review and approval by NASA.

	33. 
	RESERVED.

	34. 
	The RFP states that the MEO may include subcontractor past performance information—Industry Day Briefing says must for “significant subcontractors”.  Is this a change?  If so, is this compliant with the A-76 Circular?

Response: NASA intends to evaluate, to the extent available, past performance information (whether included in the proposal or not) for any “significant subcontractors” included in the MEO tender.  The OMB Circular does not preclude evaluation of past performance of the MEO subcontractors.

	35. 
	A-76 Circular states “MEO to first determine what is commercial”.  Why aren’t the commercial functions the Performance Work Statement?  What is meant by “commercial”?

Response: The functions/activities determined to be commercial are those included in the Performance Work Statement.  The determination of which functions are commercial and included in the PWS is made by the Agency, not by the team preparing the government proposal (MEO). The term “commercial” as used here is defined in appendix D of the OMB Circular A-76.

	36. 
	If the MEO can bid subcontractor(s), why are they exempted from the requirement for a subcontracting plan?

Response: See the response to question #25.

	37. 
	RESERVED. 

	38. 
	Will NASA use the “10% provision” of the A-76 Circular—i.e., must a contractor bid beat the government MEO by greater than 10%?

Response: NASA intends to use best-value tradeoff selection procedures as described in the FAR and OMB Circular A-76.  Also in accordance with the Circular, NASA does intend to apply the 10% conversion factor.

	39. 
	Given that Seat Management is provided by the government (presumably under ODIN), what is the real content of IT Services under NSSC?

Response: Reference NSSC PWS paragraph 3.4 and associated reference IT documents (Information Technology Reference Document released with the Draft Performance Work Statement).

	40. 
	How will NASA deal with the award fee element of cost?  How will a contractor’s price be compared to an MEO price?

Response: NASA will evaluate all offers (including the MEO tender) in accordance with the evaluation criteria stated in the solicitation.  In general, upon making cost realism and any other necessary adjustments to offers and the MEO tender, the MEO tender cost and technical factors will be evaluated against all other offers, just like any other offer.

	41. 
	Will NASA identify the numbers of current employees (government & contractor) currently performing this work?

Response: The number of full-time equivalent civil servants and work-year equivalent contractor employees currently performing the work was provided in the public announcement, released through the fedbizopps on December 12, 2004.  The estimates provided were approximately 200 FTE and 200 WYE.

	42. 
	Please describe the Integrated Evaluation Team [Source Evaluation Board].  Who sits on the team?

Response: NASA does not release the names of the members on the Source Evaluation Board in order to preserve the integrity of the procurement process.

	43. 
	RESERVED.

	44. 
	Why is the Service Disabled Veteran business goal 2% versus 3% encouraged by government?

Response: The 3% goal referenced is a government-wide goal based on total agency subcontracting dollars.  The 2% goal included in this procurement is based on total contract dollars, which is effectively higher than if we utilized a 3% goal based on total anticipated subcontracting dollars.

	45. 
	Regarding MEO subcontractors, will they be limited to the current number of contractors or ratio?

Response: Yes.  Reference question #10.

	46. 
	RESERVED.

	47. 
	Please explain the current approach/vision for providing Agency Seat Management Services (GFE).  What procurement process will be used; i.e. delivery order process conducted by HQ, NSSC, or services provided by an associated Field Center?

Response: The tentative approach is to partner with the nearest Center and utilize its delivery order.
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